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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome everyone

          3  here today to the Public Safety Committee. I will

          4  introduce some of our members we have here today, Sara

          5  Gonzalez, Chair of our Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice,

          6  Councilman Hiram Monserrate, from Corona, Queens. We

          7  have other members who have other hearings going on at

          8  the same time and we'll be stopping, and in fact, some

          9  of our members here now will be leaving shortly and will

         10  be going back and forth to other hearings. Today's

         11  hearing we'll be discussing Intro. 528, a bill which

         12  will make it illegal for any person to disrupt a

         13  sporting event by throwing any object or substance onto

         14  that court, or onto those premises.

         15                 In 2002, I introduced a bill to address

         16  an increase in a number of incidents in which fans ran

         17  on the field, for whatever reason, including the

         18  attempted assault on players or umpires while the game

         19  is in progress.

         20                 This type of behavior is clearly

         21  problematic to the players who are focused on the game

         22  and don't expect or anticipate to be the subject of any

         23  attack or harassment, has the very real potential to

         24  lead to violence because of the large number of people

         25  packed into a small venue. This potential for violence
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          2  has dramatically increased at critical points in the

          3  game when the passions of fans or players run high.

          4                 In addition to spectators running onto

          5  the field, throwing objects onto a sports venue during a

          6  game is similarly very dangerous with serious

          7  consequences. These consequences were amply demonstrated

          8  at a basketball game on November 19th of 2004 in Detroit

          9  when Ron Artest, who plays for the Indianapolis Pacers

         10  rushed the stands after a spectator through a cup filled

         11  with liquid at him.

         12                   As a result of the ensuing malay, nine

         13  spectators were injured, several fans and players were

         14  charged with assault.

         15                 Putting aside the role of Artest in the

         16  play, this incident likely would not have happened had

         17  the spectator not thrown an object onto the court.

         18                 In addition, I was at game six of the

         19  Yankee Red Sox World Series, and many of us remember

         20  what happened at that game. I was sitting next to Mayor

         21  Bloomberg right at field level, and there was a disputed

         22  call, I believe it was when Alice Rodriguez slapped the

         23  ball out of someone's hands and was called back and the

         24  play was eventually called back, and after that

         25  incident, while that happened, many fans threw objects
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          2  onto the field. Sitting right at field level was a

          3  pretty scary event, actually, to watch all these cups

          4  and balls and beer bottles, which turned out to be

          5  plastic, but you don't know that for use until they

          6  land, we're hitting the field all around us.

          7  Unfortunately, that turned out to be what should have

          8  happened there was the Yankees should have shown the

          9  replay on the stands to show it was a good call, but

         10  being at the game, no one knew it was a good call, and

         11  they reacted inappropriately by throwing things onto the

         12  field.

         13                 So, we had those two most recent events

         14  where it was shown how dangerous it could be to have

         15  fans throw objects on the field.

         16                 Under our current law, which was adopted

         17  by the Council, signed by the Mayor in 2003, it is now a

         18  crime with a penalty of up to one year in jail and the

         19  $1,000 penalty to knowingly enter or trespass on a

         20  sporting event. Had the spectator in Detroit thrown a

         21  beer or a cup or any item here in New York City, he

         22  could not be charged under our current law because it

         23  requires actually entering the professional playing

         24  sports area.

         25                 Perhaps the spectator could have been
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          2  charged with disorderly conduct or harassment, but these

          3  charges of violations with only up to 15 days in jail.

          4                 Because of that Detroit incident and the

          5  stadium incident here in New York I just mentioned, I

          6  sponsored Intro. 528 to increase the penalties for those

          7  with intent to harass, annoy, or alarm, disrupt a game

          8  by throwing an object on the field. The penalty is

          9  similar. It's actually exactly the same. A jail term of

         10  up to a year and a thousand dollar fine, as well as

         11  civil penalties up to $5,000.

         12                 Be assured, these laws do have an effect.

         13  In May of last year a spectator at a Mets game rushed

         14  onto the field waving a Howard Stern sign. He was

         15  charged under our 2003 code provision, and in a plea

         16  deal received eight weekends in jail and $2,000 in

         17  fines. Such a penalty would not have occurred without

         18  the section of the Administrative Code that we added in

         19  2003.

         20                 Rob Kasdon, Vice President of Security

         21  for the Mets, stated that he believed that sentence was

         22  the most severe penalty ever handed out for disruption

         23  of a sporting event.

         24                 He's here to testify today, as is major

         25  league baseball, as is the Queens District Attorney's
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          2  Office, as is the US Tennis Center. So, we'll be hearing

          3  their opinion on that bill and how it's been working and

          4  this new bill.

          5                 The potential for violence at

          6  professional sporting events is very real. Fans need to

          7  know that behavior such as throwing objects on the field

          8  is not only unacceptable but criminal.

          9                 In New York, if you're going to attend a

         10  sporting event, you will need to behave, and if you

         11  don't, we will have the tools in place to punish you

         12  appropriately.

         13                 We will begin by hearing from the Queens

         14  District Attorney's Office, followed by the other

         15  entities I mentioned. We've been joined by Councilman

         16  Allan Jennings. Thank you.

         17                 And I'd like to welcome Kristen Kane,

         18  from the Queens District Attorney's Office, who is in

         19  charge of all prosecutions arising out of Shea Stadium

         20  or the US Tennis Center.

         21                 Ms. Kane, welcome to the City Council

         22  again. Your help was very constructive in crafting our

         23  last bill, and we've been working with you on this bill,

         24  and we've already made some changes in what's been

         25  written based on your input. So, thank you for coming
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          2  down today. You may begin your testimony.

          3                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: Thank

          4  you, Chairman Vallone, and members of the Public Safety

          5  Committee. On behalf of Richard A. Brown, Queens

          6  District Attorney, I would like to thank you for the

          7  opportunity to be heard on this important legislation.

          8                 As you mentioned, I am assigned as a

          9  liaison to the United States Tennis Center and Shea

         10  Stadium. And I did come before you during hearings on

         11  the initial legislation regarding trespassing during

         12  professional sporting events, and our office supported

         13  that legislation.

         14                 We also support this amendment, which

         15  would serve to encompass also that conduct which

         16  subjects or attempts to subject a sports participant to

         17  contact by object or substance. And our support for this

         18  amendment is based upon the same concerns and reasons

         19  set forth during the initial hearing.

         20                 Queens County is home, as you know, to

         21  two major sports arenas. They are national and

         22  international sporting venues and draw players and fans

         23  from around the country and the world, as well as our

         24  own New Yorkers.

         25                 We have a duty to ensure that the
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          2  sporting events held not only in Queens, but in all

          3  arenas throughout the City, are not only enjoyable but

          4  safe for players, staff members and spectators alike.

          5                 Where thousands come together in a highly

          6  charged and excited environment, we need to be extra

          7  vigilant in ensuring the general welfare and safety of

          8  all those who are present.

          9                 We have already seen too many disturbing

         10  criminal incidents at other sporting venues throughout

         11  the country. Those incidents are cause for concern, as

         12  unruly fans have endangered players and other

         13  participants.

         14                 Elevating the existing prosecutions of

         15  this type of conduct is entirely appropriate, whereas in

         16  a professional sporting event, the incident occurs

         17  within a large public venue.

         18                 There is potential for additional

         19  problems and further criminality resulting from the

         20  onset of a single person's conduct.

         21                 During the 2004 baseball season, there

         22  were three instances of fans trespassing on the playing

         23  field at Shea Stadium. All three defendants were

         24  successfully prosecuted under the new legislation that

         25  this Committee passed two years ago.
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          2                 Because of the new legislation, all three

          3  defendants pled guilty to misdemeanors and were

          4  sentenced accordingly.

          5                 Under the new law, we were able to secure

          6  criminal convictions and greater penalties than we've

          7  seen in the past.

          8                 The new legislation already passed and

          9  the amendment before you today better reflects the

         10  climate and concern regarding certain behavior and the

         11  threats that they pose at sporting events.

         12                 In light of the possibility or the

         13  potential of a new stadium in the City, or of the

         14  Olympic games to be held here in New York City, this

         15  legislation and its amendment is now even more

         16  significant and necessary.

         17                 We've already spoken, as you mentioned,

         18  Chairman Vallone, with regard to certain drafting

         19  issues. The Queens District Attorney's Office would

         20  welcome any further discussions regarding, as I said,

         21  the drafting issues or situations that may or may not be

         22  covered by this new amendment and the current

         23  legislation. And the district attorney, Richard Brown,

         24  supports the law, commends this Council, as it may once

         25  again be the leading legislative body in drafting model
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          2  legislation of this kind.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Ms. Kane.

          5  Your written testimony, could you in the future provide

          6  us with a copy of that, if it isn't ready yet, to be

          7  provided?

          8                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE:

          9  Certainly.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You don't look happy

         11  about that, but...

         12                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: It was

         13  my understanding, Chairman, that it was not necessary.

         14  But I would certainly provide that. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It could be

         16  handwritten, anything, as long as we have something to

         17  look at down the road and to, for the future, when we

         18  look back at this hearing, and how we've led the world

         19  in protecting the fans, we would like to have some

         20  testimony.

         21                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: I could

         22  submit this to you now, sir.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

         24                 You mentioned briefly that you have

         25  prosecuted three different people under the law as it
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          2  presently exists?

          3                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE:

          4  Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Just because we like

          6  to keep up on how our law is being enforced, can you

          7  tell us a little bit about those prosecutions?

          8                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE:

          9  Certainly.

         10                 The first prosecution occurred during an

         11  incident from May of 2004, a game between the San

         12  Francisco Giants and the New York Mets. In that

         13  incident, a fan jumped over the railing and ran onto the

         14  field. He ran away from the security officers, out of

         15  his pocket he pulled a sign mentioning a local radio

         16  personality, and continued to run away from the security

         17  on the field.

         18                 The individual, of course, was arrested

         19  and I would commend the New York City Police Department

         20  as well as Shea Stadium security in their prompt

         21  attention to the matter.

         22                 The end result, because of the new

         23  legislation, quite frankly, we were able to secure a

         24  disposition that we would unlikely have been able to do.

         25                 This defendant did receive what was the
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          2  equivalent of two months of intermittent incarceration,

          3  three years of probation. He was sentenced to a $1,000

          4  fine, and only with this new legislation were we able to

          5  also procure a $1,000 civil penalty, which was paid

          6  directly to the New York Mets, which it was our

          7  understanding would then be subsequently paid to a

          8  charity.

          9                 But in any event, it was a sentence that

         10  far exceeded anything that we had been able to do in the

         11  past on the new legislation.

         12                 The second incident was in August at a

         13  Houston Astro Mets game. That circumstance is a little

         14  bit different in that the game, for all intents and

         15  purposes, had already concluded. The individual, most of

         16  the fans I should say had dispersed at that point, and

         17  most of the players had dispersed at that point, but

         18  there were a few stragglers in the stadium, and either

         19  an umpire or a coach, Mr. Katz, may be better able to

         20  explain the story, but either an umpire or a coach had

         21  walked across the field, and this defendant ran toward

         22  him. It was our understanding that he ran toward him for

         23  an autograph. And based on all the facts and

         24  circumstances of that case, he was also treated

         25  accordingly. In that situation the Defendant did also
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          2  plead guilty for the misdemeanor. He was sentenced to

          3  ten days community service, a conditional discharge, a

          4  $1,000 fine, and also a $1,000 civil penalty.

          5                 Oh, I should mention also in both cases,

          6  because it is now an A misdemeanor, we were able to

          7  receive full orders of protection, keeping both of these

          8  defendants away from the Stadium for three years, which

          9  is something we can only do under an A misdemeanor, the

         10  three-year order of protection.

         11                 The last incident regards a 17 year old.

         12  That was back in September. I believe it was September

         13  15th of 2004.

         14                 And I mention his age because it is

         15  significant. And I would just mention also, I think this

         16  is an appropriate time to tell you that although the

         17  statutes before you do provide for rather increased

         18  penalties, it's not a mandatory maximum, but it's the

         19  maximum allowable by law, and the Queens District

         20  Attorney's Office, I can't speak for all the offices,

         21  but I think it would be safe to say that all cases are

         22  treated on an individual basis. The facts and

         23  circumstances underlying the situation, along with the

         24  defendant's own history are taken into account for a

         25  plea agreement or a sentence recommendation is made. And
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          2  in fact, in that case, an individual who was 17 years of

          3  age who had no prior criminal convictions was given a

          4  conditional discharge, and was also afforded what we

          5  call youthful offender treatment, based on his age. So

          6  those are the three cases.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, three different

          8  incidents, one the 30 days in jail and $2,000 of fines,

          9  final order of protection, three years of probation.

         10                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: One with ten days in

         12  jail, community service, $2,000 fines. Again, a final

         13  order of protection. And then the 17 year old who

         14  received no time in jail but a conditional discharge.

         15                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: You

         16  misspoke with regard to the second incident. It was not

         17  ten years incarceration -- excuse me, ten days --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Community service,

         19  I'm sorry. Okay, thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Mr. Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, sir.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: What was the

         23  last incident? What date did that take place with the 17

         24  year olds?

         25                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: I'm
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          2  sorry, say again?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The 17 year old,

          4  what date was that?

          5                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: That

          6  was in September at the end of the season, September

          7  15th of 2004.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And the Mets

          9  game again?

         10                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: Yes,

         11  sir. It was at Shea Stadium. More details on that, I

         12  would ask that you address --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I was going to

         14  ask you what was the details, because you didn't give

         15  any details on what took place there.

         16                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: I would

         17  ask that you mention that over to Mr. Kasdon of Shea.

         18  But I believe, again, it was also within the seventh or

         19  eighth inning, during the game, and he was promptly

         20  escorted off the field.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Oh, he ran on

         22  the field?

         23                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: I'm

         24  sorry?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: He ran on the
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          2  field?

          3                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: Yes,

          4  sir. He trespassed upon the field at Shea. There were no

          5  injuries. And that's also significant, I would mention

          6  in all three incidents there were no injuries and that

          7  would also be reflected upon the sentence.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Do you know what

          9  his intention was for going on the field?

         10                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: I would

         11  only speculate, sir. But the intent generally with

         12  regard to that case would be more the publicity seeking

         13  or attention seeking, 17-year-old behavior. Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me also welcome

         15  Council Member Katz here from the Land Use hearing,

         16  which is going on next door.

         17                 So, I believe the point you were making,

         18  and which is amply illustrated, is that with the year

         19  max, you are now able to get a wide range of sentences

         20  that you weren't able to get in the past; is that

         21  correct?

         22                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE:

         23  Absolutely. Just because we do have the potential of

         24  recommending one year incarceration, that's not

         25  necessarily what we would be looking for. We've taken
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          2  into account all the facts and circumstances.

          3                 But the reality of --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Right. And only in

          5  the situation where the defendant had a criminal

          6  background, and did run around the field with a sign

          7  above his head, and that's a situation you did ask for

          8  jail time and received it. But that's not normally what

          9  would happen in this type of situation, correct?

         10                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: That's

         11  correct, Chairman.

         12                 What we're able to do now, because we do

         13  have those greater penalties, the greater exposure, is

         14  we are able to get more significant sentencing. It

         15  enables the District Attorneys' offices throughout the

         16  City to engage in greater plea bargaining positions with

         17  this new law. Quite frankly, to say that these cases are

         18  going to go to trial and we're going to be seeking the

         19  maximum punishment is not always realistic, is not

         20  always the case, but with the penalty exposure, we're

         21  able to more accurately reflect the climate and get

         22  greater sentences.

         23                 I would also mention that in my personal

         24  experience with prosecuting these three cases last year,

         25  I found the judiciary to be a little bit more aware,
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          2  shall we say, of the gravity of the cases, taking it a

          3  little bit more seriously.

          4                 I found that to be the case also with

          5  regard to the defense bar, because the reality and what

          6  we've seen historically is these cases were not treated

          7  very seriously, and we've seen in other venues, thank

          8  goodness not necessarily here in New York City, but

          9  we've seen in other venues throughout the country where

         10  there has been serious physical injury, an umpire, an

         11  incident which resulted in permanent hearing damage, I

         12  believe that was in Chicago. So, I mean, it's not a

         13  situation that should be taken lightly anymore.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, given the fact

         15  that the year is the max, and that would only happen in

         16  certain circumstances, and the fact that you are given

         17  much more of a tool to assist you in getting police in

         18  these type cases, do you believe that the year in jail

         19  as a potential maximum is appropriate as it exists? And

         20  is it appropriate in the law we're discussing, which

         21  would be throwing objects on the field?

         22                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: I do

         23  believe in both instances it is appropriate, for the

         24  reasons that I set forth earlier, given the climate and

         25  the need for general safety and security. We're talking
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          2  about thousands of people congregating in a single area

          3  and the exposure of violence and threats that may occur

          4  is very great, and for practical purposes it is a tool,

          5  and once again, we consider all the facts and

          6  circumstances underlying each particular incident, but I

          7  do believe it is appropriate, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: As in Detroit, a

          9  spectator had thrown a cup on the field, or any other

         10  item on the field, or in the court, what would you be

         11  able to prosecute them for presently?

         12                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: Not

         13  very much, quite frankly.

         14                 If one were to throw a glass of soda or

         15  beer on a sports participant today here in New York

         16  City, if there were no injuries, at best we're dealing

         17  with what we call a violation, perhaps a harassment or a

         18  disorderly conduct, the violation is not a crime. It

         19  does not result in a criminal conviction on one's

         20  record. The maximum time, I think you mentioned it

         21  earlier, Chairman, is 15 days in jail. And while that 15

         22  days may be appropriate, I'm here to tell you that as a

         23  practical matter, when that is the maximum, that is very

         24  rarely received as a sentence, so that we're only

         25  working off of that as a maximum. Typically, a typical
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          2  resolution of a violation will be what we call an

          3  adjournment and contemplation of dismissal. We rarely

          4  see anything, maybe we see some conditional -- I'm

          5  sorry, some community service or a fine. But the

          6  sanctions and the sentences available and the violations

          7  are far less.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And when you say a

          9  15-day maximum, that means, first of all, they only do

         10  two-thirds of that, which would be ten days, and the

         11  15-day maximum would only occur after a trial, because

         12  no one would plead guilty to the maximum. They could

         13  only get that after a trial, correct?

         14                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: That's

         15  a good point, Chairman, yes. That is true. We rarely, if

         16  ever, I personally have never had that fortunate event

         17  happen where a defendant would actually plead guilty

         18  prior to trial, on the agreement that he received the

         19  maximum allowable sentence by law, it doesn't happen.

         20                 In order to get a maximum allowable

         21  sentence by law for practical purposes is when you try

         22  the case and before a very good judge, I might add.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Your office, and my

         24  counsel, and myself have discussed some changes to this

         25  bill, so I won't go into that now, but we will be
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          2  amending it to take out any need to prove an attempt at

          3  striking a player, and we will make sure that the final

          4  version of this very clearly states that disrupting an

          5  event with an intent to harass or annoy will be enough

          6  to obtain a conviction. That's based on what you said.

          7                 Also, in the past when we had the other

          8  bill, regarding running on the field, it was your office

          9  and it was baseball that came up with some very

         10  constructive improvements, such as increasing the area

         11  that was covered under the bill to improve bull pens, it

         12  was increasing the time that the bill was in effect, to

         13  include pre-game and after the game, increasing the

         14  people who were covered to include umpires and people

         15  singing the National Anthem and the like. So, we will be

         16  working with you again regarding this bill.

         17                 Your testimony was very comprehensive,

         18  and my questions have been answered. Do the Committee

         19  members have any other questions? Council Member

         20  Jennings?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I know you

         22  mentioned you wanted to make an amendment. If you could

         23  please go into a little detail regarding that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'll go into that

         25  after the hearing. But briefly, now the bill reads that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  in order to be guilty under it, you would have to

          3  attempt to strike a sports participant, or strike a

          4  sports participant, which was not actually the way it

          5  was intended, because we want to remove the need to

          6  prove any attempt at striking someone, such as so if you

          7  threw a battery on the field or any other item on the

          8  field, and it wasn't near a participant but it struck

          9  the field, that would be enough.

         10                 The way it's presently written was just a

         11  technical mistake when we wrote it up. It doesn't seem

         12  to encompass that. So, the final version of this bill

         13  will absolutely read that if you throw an item on the

         14  field, any item on the field, with an intent to annoy or

         15  harass, that will be enough to find you guilty under

         16  this, this provision. Right now it doesn't seem to say

         17  that but it will.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Annoy?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Annoy. We don't want

         20  to eliminate traditional, some traditional events such

         21  as say throwing hats on an ice after a hat trick.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: That's my

         23  question --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Exactly. That would

         25  not --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: You use the word

          3  annoy, that's too conservative of a term that one --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's why we're

          5  going to leave the intent to annoy, because no one is

          6  throwing a hat with an intent to annoy. So, it's

          7  potentially throwing a ball back on the field after a

          8  home run, there would be no intent to annoy or harass

          9  there, just more traditional.

         10                 So, we're going to make sure that we put

         11  in our legislative intent that we don't intend to cover

         12  those type things, and there will be an intent to annoy

         13  or harass and disrupt the game by throwing an item on

         14  the field.

         15                 Councilman Gonzalez, any questions?

         16                 ADA Kane, thank you very much for coming

         17  down, and your assistance prior to today and after

         18  today. We'll look forward to a copy of the statement

         19  when you get a chance. And again, thank you for your

         20  prosecutions in this. Thirty days in jail, as Rob Kasdon

         21  said to the press, is unheard of in a situation like

         22  this. And it doesn't just happen because we have this

         23  law. It happens because of a thorough prosecution, it

         24  happens because this defendant was made aware by you and

         25  by your office of how important and the importance that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  you placed on this prosecution. It's the first of its

          3  type in this country, and we congratulate you for your

          4  prosecutions under this bill.

          5                 ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY KANE: Thank

          6  you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The next panel will

          8  include Dan Mullin from Major League Baseball, Robert

          9  Kasdon from the New York Mets, and Daniel Zausner from

         10  the United States Tenants Association. I believe at this

         11  point this will be the final panel also.

         12                 Thank you, gentlemen, for coming down.

         13  The first question, are you now, or have you ever been

         14  on steroids? Oh, sorry, wrong hearing.

         15                 You guys should put in place the

         16  procedure we have here at City Council, which is

         17  basically, just look at us, it's obvious, you don't have

         18  to worry about it.

         19                 But thank you all for coming down today.

         20  We'll begin with major league baseball, and that would

         21  be on the end. And again, thank you all for the help

         22  you've been in the past on the prior bills we've done

         23  together. We look forward to working together with you

         24  on this, and why don't want start with baseball. Just

         25  introduce yourself and go forward.
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          2                 MR. MULLIN: My name is Dan Mullin. I'm

          3  the Senior Director for Facility Management and Major

          4  League Baseball.

          5                 Prior to joining MLB I spent 23 years

          6  with the NYPD, retiring as a Deputy Chief in the Bronx

          7  in 2003.

          8                 I want to thank the Public Safety

          9  Committee and Peter Vallone, Jr., for the leadership

         10  that's been shown in this important issue. I also had

         11  the pleasure of serving as the Commanding Officer of the

         12  114th Precinct in Astoria and worked closely with the

         13  Chairman's father who is an outstanding public servant.

         14                 In my current position I act on behalf of

         15  the Commissioner of Baseball to make ball parks around

         16  the country as safe as possible for our players and

         17  fans.

         18                 I do that by spreading best practices

         19  enforcing MLB standards in each of our 28 Major League

         20  cities.

         21                 I work closely with Rob Kasdon in New

         22  York. Rob is a true professional, and he's done some

         23  amazing things at Shea Stadium.

         24                 I have also coordinated security for

         25  major league trips to Japan, Mexico, Dominican Republic
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          2  and Venezuela.

          3                 During the last three years inappropriate

          4  fan behavior has come to the forefront. During one game

          5  a father and son ran onto the field and assaulted Tom

          6  Gamboa, the first base coach for the Kansas City Royals,

          7  and as ADA Kane alluded to, he has permanent hearing

          8  loss in one of his ears.

          9                 Several months later a fan assaulted

         10  umpire Laz Diaz during a White Sox game. During the 2004

         11  season, 39 people were arrested around the country for

         12  running onto the field during Major League Games.

         13                 I personally track each of these

         14  incidents and work with the teams to try to identify

         15  patterns and develop a better field security plan in

         16  each of our venues.

         17                 I also work with local prosecutors during

         18  the prosecution of these individuals. Unfortunately, in

         19  the vast majority of jurisdictions, the laws that cover

         20  this kind of behavior are inadequate. Consequently,

         21  there is little or no punishment, and therefore no

         22  deterrent.

         23                 In fact, in Miami, during the World

         24  Series two years ago, a man ran naked on the field

         25  during the World Series Game and he told us quite
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          2  honestly that he was offered $20,000 to do that, and in

          3  Miami it was a violation, a fine, and in fact running

          4  naked on the field in front of 50,000 people wasn't

          5  public ludeness, because you had to prove that you did

          6  it for the purpose of sexual gratification, which they

          7  couldn't prove.

          8                 So, running naked on the field in front

          9  of 50,000 people resulted in a minimal fine, and he got

         10  -- well, I don't know if he got his bet, but in his

         11  mind it was worth the $20,000, he stood to benefit by

         12  that.

         13                 The legislation that was passed last

         14  year, I have held that up as a model, to every team in

         15  the country.

         16                 Rob and I have done presentations where

         17  we have used that legislation as an example of what

         18  other cities should strive to achieve.

         19                 This bill is on last year's success. You

         20  only have to go back to Auburne Hills, as the Chairman

         21  alluded to, to see the fan violence that can be

         22  insighted by throwing things onto the court.

         23                 In that case beer was thrown at players,

         24  and we all saw what happened when players were under the

         25  stands and one of the ugliest incidents in pro sports
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          2  history.

          3                 During the 2004 season, there were dozens

          4  of incidents where fans threw projectiles onto the

          5  field.

          6                 During last year's American League

          7  playoff series between the Yankees and the Boston Red

          8  Sox, play had to be suspended and police officers

          9  brought onto the field, when small rubber balls that had

         10  been given outside by a marketer outside the ballpark

         11  were thrown on, and that was soon followed by beer

         12  bottles, which the Chairman alluded to for plastic, but

         13  believe me, the players and the umpires were terrified

         14  and the umpires threatened to pull the players off the

         15  field and permanently suspend the game, because they

         16  feared for their safety and out of the players.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: As I said, you don't

         18  know it's a rubber ball or a plastic bottle until it

         19  hits. It's very scary.

         20                 MR. MULLIN: I was on the field when that

         21  happened, and believe me, the players and the umpires

         22  were legitimately terrified as the stuff was raining

         23  down upon them.

         24                 In Philadelphia several players had to be

         25  treated at a local hospital when a fan threw a canister
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          2  containing innoxious liquid into the bull pen, tear gas

          3  we think it was.

          4                 At Shea Stadium, a fan threw a beer into

          5  the eyes of the third baseman as he attempted to make a

          6  play.

          7                 In Oakland, a man was arrested for trying

          8  to throw a fire cracker onto the field. It fell short

          9  and landed in the lower seating bowl and injured

         10  someone.

         11                 In Montreal fans threw golf balls onto

         12  the field, and that game was suspended. So, it's a

         13  pattern that's happening all across the country. Another

         14  incident in Oakland, a fan threw a cell phone onto the

         15  field, and not only missed hitting a player in the head,

         16  was playing right field, not the smartest fan in the

         17  world because it was his cell phone and the police

         18  called the cell phone and told him they found his cell

         19  phone, and he actually came to pick it up and was

         20  arrested.

         21                 We're doing our best to promote

         22  responsible fan behavior in Major League Baseball.

         23                 We have a leadership role in the team

         24  coalition, which is an industry non-profit group that

         25  promotes responsible drinking at sporting venues. We've
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          2  also instituted a crowd management initiative to try to

          3  enforce a code of conduct for fan behavior.

          4                 So, in closing we strongly support this

          5  bill, and applaud the Committee for its leadership role

          6  in this area.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'll hold up on

          9  questions until the whole panel is done. Why don't we

         10  just go in, and Mr. Kasdon, why don't you go next.

         11                 MR. KASDON: Good morning. I'm Robert J.

         12  Kasdon, Vice President for Security for the New York

         13  Mets, having assumed this position in February 2003.

         14                 Before joining the Mets, I served as

         15  Police Officer in Norfolk Virginia and later with the

         16  United States Secret Service, in which I retired in

         17  1996.

         18                 After my retirement, I was Vice President

         19  of Security Management for Vivendi Universal, parent

         20  company of Universal's Music, Theme Park and Motion

         21  Picture Businesses.

         22                 I want to thank the Public Safety

         23  Committee and Chairman Vallone for the opportunity to

         24  address the Committee regarding Bill 528, which amends

         25  Section 10-162, interference with a professional
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          2  sporting event of the Administrative Code of the City of

          3  New York.

          4                 Last year the Committee introduced

          5  10-162, which was later signed into law by Mayor

          6  Bloomberg.

          7                 That legislation provided a professional

          8  sports teams, operating within the City of New York,

          9  with an important tool to assist us in maintaining order

         10  in our venues while providing protection for those

         11  individuals whose responsibilities require them to be on

         12  the playing area.

         13                 The overwhelming majority of our fans are

         14  law-abiding individuals and families who come to the

         15  park to enjoy the game and would never engage in action

         16  of the type addressed in these bills. These laws address

         17  the activities of a very few aggressive fans whose

         18  conduct detracts from the ballpark experience for the

         19  well-behaved majority and can result in serious

         20  consequences.

         21                 During the 2004 season, three individuals

         22  who entered the field of play at Shea Stadium during

         23  games were arrested and successfully prosecuted under

         24  this law. All of them entered pleas of guilty to

         25  10--162, "Interference with a Professional Sporting
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          2  Event."

          3                 The arrest, prosecution and subsequent

          4  disposition of their cases received attention in the

          5  print media as well as radio and television coverage.

          6  More than simply reporting on these cases, these arrests

          7  became the topic of commentary and initiated discussion

          8  by the public. The attention proved beneficial as it

          9  educated the public as to the penalties for these

         10  actions and displayed the seriousness with which the

         11  City of New York views these acts.

         12                 In December of 2004, Dan Mullin, Director

         13  of Security and Facility Management for Major League

         14  Baseball and I briefed the Major League Baseball

         15  Operations Meeting regarding 10-1632, as well as this

         16  proposed amendment.

         17                 From our discussions, it became apparent

         18  that 10-162 is the strongest, most comprehensive

         19  legislation of its type.

         20                 Clearly, the City of New York has created

         21  landmark legislation.

         22                 The proposed amendment further

         23  strengthens legislation. Just as with the initial

         24  legislation, the Council recognizes a problem exists and

         25  is addressing it in a timely and proactive manner.
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          2                 Professional sports are visible, high

          3  energy and emotional events attended by tens of

          4  thousands of people. As we witnessed earlier this season

          5  during a National Basketball Association game between

          6  the Pistons and Pacers in Detroit, a senseless act, that

          7  of throwing a beer on a player initiated a chain of

          8  events that quickly escalated into a serious situation.

          9                 In the environment in which we live, we

         10  can no longer be certain that a substance thrown onto

         11  the field of play is harmless. Even if it is a harmless

         12  substance, it is difficult to predict the reaction of

         13  the person victimized by the act. Any action we can take

         14  to discourage this type of activity will help us protect

         15  those on the field of play as well as the fans. It will

         16  help us maintain the safe environment we have created at

         17  Shea Stadium.

         18                 In response to last year's legislation,

         19  we informed our fans during the pre-game announcement

         20  that "coming onto the field is dangerous and illegal and

         21  anyone doing so will be arrested." If passed, we will

         22  deliver a similar notice regarding the amendment.

         23                 This past Thursday, I briefed our

         24  players, coaches and staff regarding 10-162, as well as

         25  the proposed amendment. We discussed how this
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          2  legislation provides stadium security and law

          3  enforcement with the means to address situations

          4  involving unruly fans. Their awareness of this

          5  legislation reduces the possibility of a confrontation

          6  between the players and fans.

          7                 Players, umpires, security guards and

          8  other participants in sporting events deserve to be safe

          9  in their workplace just as any other person working in

         10  the City of New York.

         11                 The New York Mets strongly support the

         12  passage of this amendment. We feel that it will provide

         13  us with an additional tool for us to maintain a safe

         14  environment for our players and our fans.

         15                 We applaud the Council of the City of New

         16  York and in particular this Committee for having the

         17  foresight to recognize and address this important issue.

         18                 Again, I thank the Committee for their

         19  work and the opportunity to offer these comments.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. We

         21  request that you amend that announcement you make before

         22  games about running on the field and being arrested and

         23  saying prosecuted under the City Council Public Safety

         24  law.

         25                 MR. KASDON: I will do that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's okay, you

          3  don't have to.

          4                 Mr. Zausner.

          5                 MR. ZAUSNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'd

          6  like to thank the Chairman, as well as the Committee,

          7  for the opportunity to have our voices heard.

          8                 My name is Daniel Zausner, and I am the

          9  Vice President and Managing Director of the USTA

         10  National Tennis Center, here on behalf of the USTA today

         11  in my capacity, I oversee the operations of the US Open,

         12  as well as the year-round operations of the National

         13  Tennis Center.

         14                 At this time I'd like to read a statement

         15  on behalf of Lee Hamilton, who is our Executive Director

         16  and COO.

         17                 On behalf of the United States Tennis

         18  Association, I would like to thank you for the

         19  opportunity to express our strong endorsement and

         20  support of Intro. No. 528, which seeks to amend Section

         21  10-162 of Title 1 of Chapter 10 of the Administrative

         22  Code of the City of New York, by making it illegal for

         23  any person to subject a sports participant at a

         24  professional sporting event to contact by any objective

         25  substance.
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          2                 The USTA is a national governing body for

          3  the sport of tennis in the US. It owns and operates the

          4  US Open, one of the four grand slam tournaments in the

          5  largest annually attended sporting event in the world,

          6  staged each year at the USTA National Tennis Center in

          7  Flushing Meadows, Corona Park, Queens, New York. The US

          8  Open hosted more than 600,000 spectators in 2004 and was

          9  seen on television throughout the world by more than 86

         10  million viewers.

         11                 In addition to the US Open, the USTA

         12  oversees the US Open Series which was launched in 2004,

         13  and links 11 summer tournaments to the US Open.

         14                 The USTA also selects the team for the

         15  Davis Cup, Fed Cup, Olympic and para Olympic games, and

         16  owns the '96 pro circuit tournament staged each year

         17  throughout the US.

         18                 A not-for-profit organization with more

         19  than 675,000 members, it invests 100 percent of its

         20  proceeds to promote and develop the growth of tennis

         21  from the grassroots to the professional levels.

         22                 We are pleased to report that there have

         23  been very few instances in which spectators at the US

         24  Open or other USTA events have engaged in the type of

         25  abusive conduct that Intro. 528 seeks to prevent.
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          2                 Spectators attending our events have

          3  almost universally been well behaved and respectful of

          4  our players, officials and other participants.

          5                 Nevertheless, recent occurrences in other

          6  sports have given rise to justifiable concerns that on

          7  occasion some spectators may lose site of acceptable

          8  standards of behavior, and that stricter and more

          9  precise regulations of spectator conduct at professional

         10  sporting events is therefore necessary and appropriate.

         11                 Nothing is more important to us than the

         12  safety of our players, fans, and all of the participants

         13  in or attending our events.

         14                 Abusive conduct by spectators towards

         15  sports participants possesses not only the threat of

         16  injury, but also imperils the public perception of our

         17  sport as an attractive and desirable entertainment

         18  product.

         19                 Neither players, sponsors nor the general

         20  public will wish to be associated with sporting events

         21  in which rude and potentially dangerous behavior is

         22  tolerated.

         23                 For those reasons, the USTA urges the

         24  adoption of Intro. No. 528.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.
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          2                 Let me welcome Council Member Vincent

          3  Gentile from Brooklyn to our hearing.

          4                 We are very proud here at the Public

          5  Safety Committee that our law is being held up by

          6  baseball as a model for the entire Country. And I think

          7  what happened in Miami, with the naked person running in

          8  the field, and what happened here in New York with

          9  somebody running on the field with a sign, they can

         10  teach us some valuable lessons.

         11                 People are absolutely and clearly

         12  weighing the benefits of the publicity they receive

         13  against the potential consequences. And in too many

         14  places, as in New York up until recently there were not

         15  enough consequences to deter this conduct. It was worth

         16  it for them to make $20,000. It was worth it to get

         17  mentioned on a local radio station. Now it's not here in

         18  New York with the potential of one year in jail, would

         19  probably deter somebody from accepting $20,000.

         20                 And the other problem, as you mentioned,

         21  is not everyone is running on the field for those

         22  publicity purposes, some are running on to actually

         23  commit assaults which resulted in the loss of hearing,

         24  partial loss of hearing by one umpire. And it's not up

         25  to security to make these determinations as people are
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          2  running around. They need to treat everyone as a

          3  potential danger, and in this day and age, when we have

          4  so many other potential dangers to worry about, it's not

          5  worth the effort, it's just not worth the expenses that

          6  you need to go through to continually chase these people

          7  down. Let's stop it before it happens, and that's what

          8  this is about. Let's make sure people know the

          9  consequences of their actions.

         10                 Mr. Mullin, you stated, you discussed

         11  numerous incidences of people running on the field, what

         12  about objects in the field? Have there been

         13  prosecutions? Has it been a problem throughout the

         14  country and here in New York?

         15                 MR. MULLIN: Again, I think it points out

         16  shortcomings in the law. They're arrests if you can

         17  identify them, but as you pointed out before, often you

         18  have to prove an intent to cause an injury, and that's

         19  virtually impossible to prove.

         20                 And I think to make an important

         21  distinction, that that language is critical. And almost

         22  universally, in cases where they've been thrown in the

         23  field, the person states I didn't intend to hurt anyone,

         24  I didn't intend to hit anyone, and that's really where

         25  the prosecution fails because you can't prove that
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          2  intent to injure. And that's why I think the language

          3  that's drafted in this legislation is so important not

          4  to place that burden on the prosecution, to prove

          5  something that's virtually unprovable.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You're absolutely

          7  right about that.

          8                 Have you come across any jurisdictions

          9  that have anything similar to this regarding throwing

         10  objects on the field?

         11                 MR. MULLIN: No, I have not. There's

         12  legislation being discussed in California, in Illinois,

         13  but it hasn't progressed very far. So, it's in

         14  discussion stages in several jurisdictions, but there's

         15  none that I know of in the country that addresses this

         16  specifically.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, you can be

         18  assured that this will progress after today, with your

         19  help.

         20                 Many of these incidents seem to be driven

         21  by alcohol consumption. What have -- here's a question

         22  to all of you, what have we been doing in that regard,

         23  to eliminate what appears to be a cause for much of this

         24  behavior?

         25                 MR. MULLIN: You're absolutely right. When
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          2  we track these incidents of people running on the field

          3  one of the things that we notice the patterns is that

          4  happens in the seventh, eighth and ninth inning, a lot

          5  of them, and that of the 39 last year, 25 of those

          6  incidents we attribute to alcohol where fans were

          7  intoxicated.

          8                 Major League Baseball and every team of

          9  Major League Baseball belongs to something called "The

         10  Team Coalition," and its techniques for effective

         11  alcohol management. It's a non-profit group that we pay

         12  into, hockey, baseball, football, Major League soccer,

         13  and beer companies, Annheuser Bush and Miller Brewing

         14  also pay into it. It's to teach fans to drink alcohol

         15  responsibly.

         16                 We do things like limit cup size, limit

         17  beers you can get per trip. Cut off after the seventh

         18  inning. Designator driver programs and fan education.

         19                 So, we think we're doing a lot on the

         20  alcohol management side, to try to, again, promote

         21  responsible consumption during the game.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Mr. Kasdon, Mr.

         23  Zausner, any update on what's being done in your arenas

         24  to combat the abuse of alcohol?

         25                 MR. KASDON: Yes. We are an active
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          2  participant in the Team Program as Dan Mullin just

          3  mentioned.

          4                 Also, this year our concessionaire in

          5  coordination with Shea Stadium Management, is

          6  introducing a new, the new procedure.

          7                 We are hiring alcohol enforcement agents,

          8  individuals whose sole responsibility is to monitor the

          9  sale and consumption of alcohol to make certain to check

         10  on the vendors, the hawkers and the concession

         11  locations, to make certain, to follow up and make

         12  certain that there are no underage sales being done,

         13  that people are not able to purchase more than the

         14  allotted number of beers, that the cutoff times would be

         15  adhered to, that intoxicated individuals are not being

         16  served additional alcohol.

         17                 Also, our security staff and ushers go

         18  through training to recognize the signs of intoxication,

         19  and this also helps us in being proactive and probably

         20  addressing some problems that these people might cause

         21  later on.

         22                 So, we're very active in the program the

         23  Major League Baseball has, as well as our own unique

         24  approaches to the subject.

         25                 MR. ZAUSNER: At the tennis center, as I
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          2  stated, we have been very fortunate in terms of our

          3  clientele and the lack of abuses in terms of alcohol and

          4  other things, but we have not ignored the fact that this

          5  is the reality at sporting events today.  Working with

          6  our concessionaire restaurant associates, we've been

          7  employing best practices, employing secret shoppers, and

          8  as well as working with the NFL Major League Baseball

          9  and NBA to make sure that we are using the best

         10  techniques possible to avoid alcohol abuse.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Mr. Chairman, I

         12  have a question.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         14  Jennings.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Mr. Kasdon, and

         16  Mr. Mullin, I guess this is particularly to you. Since

         17  the Chairman Vallone mentioned about blood and alcohol

         18  into this discussion today, my understanding is many

         19  instances with alcohol that happens, not just from the

         20  time of the game, but after the game when people leave

         21  in their cars and leave the stadiums and drive on the

         22  highway. And there has been many, many incidents of DWI,

         23  accidents, people driving while intoxicated, coming from

         24  Major League Baseball Games, but football games

         25  particularly as well, and causing serious injury and
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          2  many cases death. And based on your own admission that

          3  35 percent of your own incidents of disorderly conduct

          4  in the stadiums are based due to alcohol, and I know

          5  from my past experience in law enforcement, I was

          6  assigned a detail once at Yankee Stadium, and all the

          7  persons that were involved in an incidence I made an

          8  arrest in, all of them were intoxicated.

          9                 Why not just eliminate alcohol at the

         10  games? Why do we need to serve alcohol at these baseball

         11  games?

         12                 MR. MULLIN: Well, it's not a need to. The

         13  thing is that the vast majority of fans, 99.99 percent

         14  of fans, act responsibly. They might come to a game and

         15  enjoy one beer, or two beers, they're not driving, so we

         16  would hate to eliminate the pleasure of having a beer at

         17  a baseball game for the 99.9 percent of the people that

         18  act responsibly, rather target those that act

         19  unresponsibly and try to eliminate the bad behavior.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: But most of the

         21  problems with alcohol is not really occurring during the

         22  game, it's actually occurring when people are leaving

         23  their cars and driving intoxicated and with the strict

         24  alcohol laws of many states, I think it's .1, the

         25  percentage is very, very low, actually drinking two
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          2  beers. You can be considered intoxicated when driving a

          3  vehicle, just two beers. And I've had many, many people

          4  who have complained, well, I've been found guilty, I've

          5  been arrested, and I only had two beers, and we have

          6  very large parking lots, that means more people coming

          7  to the games and driving cars, maybe New York is a

          8  little different, but I'm sure around the country,

          9  particularly, but I wouldn't mind seeing New York taking

         10  the lead and eliminating alcohol at the game to ensure

         11  that all New Yorkers are safe when people who go and

         12  attend games don't have to drink and won't have to

         13  injure or kill anyone driving home.

         14                 MR. MULLIN: Also, as part of the team

         15  coalition effort, last year we introduced a promotion,

         16  we're pushing heavily designated drivers, and people

         17  that sign up for a designated driver programs at the

         18  ballpark are rewarded with free soda and other gifts.

         19                 They're also automatically entered into a

         20  raffle, and each team selects a designated driver of the

         21  year. They get free tickets and benefits, and one grand

         22  prize winner with a guest gets to go to the All Star

         23  Game. They spend three days in the City where the All

         24  Star Game is. They're announced on the score board as

         25  having a designated driver award who were pushing that
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          2  heavily.

          3                 We also, in most of our ballparks, use

          4  public safety announcements to warn the fans that

          5  highway patrol and local police are outside the

          6  ballpark, will be targeting people that are driving who

          7  have consumed too much alcohol.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: How many drinks

          9  is a concession stand allowed to sell an individual,

         10  period, at the game?

         11                 MR. MULLIN: Well, starting this year,

         12  we're trying to -- in the recent past it was dependent

         13  upon local jurisdiction, and the concessionaire that was

         14  at the ballpark.

         15                 As part of the team program this year,

         16  we're trying to limit cup size to 18 ounces, two beers

         17  per trip, cutoff in the seventh inning, and as Rob said,

         18  active policing within the stands.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: What's your

         20  limit per fan that they should have alcohol at a game?

         21  What's the limit?

         22                 MR. MULLIN: Well, as you pointed out, the

         23  current law is 0.8 makes you intoxicated, and depending

         24  upon how quickly you drink them and how big you are, how

         25  quickly you absorb it, two big beers could certainly put
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          2  you over that limit.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Two 12 oz beers

          4  could put you over the limit.

          5                 MR. MULLIN: It certainly could.

          6                 So, what we're concerned, it's virtually

          7  impossible to monitor how many beers each fan has, we

          8  can monitor the concessions.

          9                 Another aspect of the team training and

         10  is that every single concessionaire that serves alcohol

         11  or beer at a ballpark, has to go through a team

         12  training, and part of the team training is they're

         13  trained to recognize when they think they've had too

         14  much and to cut them off. And they're held responsible.

         15  If they serve someone that has had too much, they're job

         16  is in jeopardy.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: In fact, we saw

         18  a lawsuit I think this year where someone went to Major

         19  League Baseball game, left with a car, had an accident,

         20  injured a young lady and I believe they won a very large

         21  award for that.

         22                 MR. MULLIN: That was actually at Giant

         23  Stadium, that was a football game.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Oh, I see, a

         25  football game.
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          2                 MR. MULLIN: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: But nonetheless,

          4  it does symbolize that there is a major problem with

          5  alcohol and I think there should be a recommendation to

          6  the concession stands in terms of a maximum of alcohol,

          7  not just per trip, but that you should be able to sell

          8  to any fan who comes to the baseball game and buy

          9  alcohol.

         10                 And I think it's prudent to, even if -- I

         11  don't drink alcohol, so maybe it's easy for me to say

         12  don't drink alcohol, but I think that because of the

         13  fact that you have so many incidents of violence which

         14  is related to alcohol, that you may need to look into

         15  your policy regarding alcohol, period, at all games, not

         16  just baseball but football as well.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Gentile.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 Good morning, gentlemen. Thank you for

         23  being here this morning.

         24                 I'm just curious, a couple of just quick

         25  questions. You no longer have any glass products that
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          2  you sell; am I correct about that?

          3                 MR. MULLIN: That's correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Everything is in

          5  plastic?

          6                 MR. MULLIN: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Anything in cans?

          8                 MR. MULLIN: No, everything is in plastic.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Everything is in

         10  the plastic.

         11                 So, those plastic bottles, I see here

         12  that someone threw plastic beer bottles, those are very

         13  light, aren't they?

         14                 MR. MULLIN: Well, if they're empty

         15  they're light. But if you throw a 12 oz plastic bottle

         16  filled with liquid, like beer or soda, you throw that

         17  from in the stands on the field, it's heavy and

         18  dangerous.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I'm curious, have

         20  you changed your, or the professional teams have changed

         21  their promotional days and things that you give away now

         22  that, or used to give away that you don't give away

         23  anymore; I'm curious, has that policy changed or evolved

         24  in view of what gets thrown?

         25                 MR. MULLIN: Actually we have changed
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          2  that. Our marketing department comes to us before they

          3  agree to do a give-out at the ballpark, they'll come to

          4  us, they'll show us the item and discuss it. And

          5  frequently we'll veto it. There are a lot of items that

          6  might be nice handouts, but that we view as a potential

          7  projectile, too heavy, too easy to throw, and we'll

          8  reject it.

          9                 What we'll do sometimes if it's a good

         10  item, if it's something the fans would like, we'll give

         11  it to them on their way out of the ballpark, rather than

         12  giving it to them on their way in when they leave the

         13  ballpark. If it's a baseball or a small bat, any item

         14  that could potentially be thrown in the field, we'll

         15  give it to them on the way out rather than the past

         16  where we gave it to them on their way in.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I see. So that's

         18  happening more often now, you're giving the promotional

         19  items on the way out?

         20                 MR. MULLIN: Yes. Last year, the Chairman

         21  alluded to the incident at Yankee Stadium, and what

         22  started the onslaught onto the field were rubber balls.

         23  And those balls were actually given out by an

         24  independent company on Jerome Avenue about two blocks

         25  from the ballpark. And that's the first time we were
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          2  presented with that. It wasn't our item. We would never

          3  have allowed anyone to give out little balls to be

          4  brought into the ballpark, but they're given away from

          5  outside the stadium.

          6                 In Fenway, the next series, it happened,

          7  the same thing, and the police were able to step in and

          8  prevent that. So, yes, we do our best to try to limit

          9  those things.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: You used to have

         11  ball days, right? Where you would go get a baseball,

         12  that doesn't happen or?

         13                 MR. MULLIN: There are still occasions

         14  where you get a ball, but, again, it would be on your

         15  way out rather than on your way in.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I see. I see.

         17                 Now, is there a way to regulate what fans

         18  are actually bringing into the stadium?

         19                 You mentioned here the golf balls that

         20  were thrown on the field, Expos players of Montreal,

         21  there was no regulation at the entranceway?

         22                 MR. MULLIN: Yes, there is. And actually

         23  Rob Kasdon can actually speak about the Mets have a very

         24  aggressive program that prevent items like that from

         25  coming into the ballpark.
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          2                 MR. KASDON: We, at each of the gates,

          3  prior to entry our fans are told that all the bags are

          4  to be searched along with coats and any items they're

          5  carrying. Also, our fans are subject to random

          6  magnotometer, metal detector searches. We're one of the

          7  few ballparks that does that.

          8                 There are many items that are listed as

          9  being inappropriate for admission will not be admitted,

         10  knives, weapons, things of that nature. Noisemakers,

         11  laser pointers, hard-side coolers, things of that

         12  nature.

         13                 But we also, the Mets also make it very

         14  clear on our tickets that we have the right to determine

         15  what is appropriate for admission, and you know, we

         16  can't think of every specific item. We will take

         17  batteries, if someone has a pocketful of batteries,

         18  something of that nature. We will confiscate those

         19  batteries.

         20                 We do have that right to make that

         21  determination. We exercise it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And it gives you

         23  the ability to go through napsacks?

         24                 MR. KASDON: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: That's brought

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  into the stadium?

          3                 MR. KASDON: That's correct. Every bag is

          4  searched prior to permitting it to be brought into the

          5  stadium.

          6                 Major League Baseball has a certain

          7  parameters, the bags are limited to the 16 inches by 16

          8  inches by eight inches. We have a template at each of

          9  the gates where those bags are placed into that

         10  template. If they're larger than that, they are not

         11  permitted to be brought in.

         12                 But regardless of the size of the bag,

         13  everything from these 16 by 16 by eight bags to purses,

         14  small purses, everything is searched, as well as coats,

         15  and as I said, our fans are subject to random

         16  magnotometers.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Have you been

         18  surprised at some of the things found?

         19                 MR. KASDON: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: For example?

         21                 MR. KASDON: Well, people bring very

         22  strange things to ball games. A lot of times they'll

         23  bring -- we've confiscated everything from brass

         24  knuckles to daggers to all sorts of weapons. You know,

         25  we've confiscated what appeared to be unmarked
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          2  medication, things like that nature, liquids.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: They're going to

          4  throw the pills on the field or --

          5                 MR. KASDON: No, no. No pills on the

          6  field. We dispose of these things. Anything we're not

          7  sure of. Anything conceived to cause harm to the players

          8  or the fans we will confiscate. And as I said in my

          9  statement, these days, in the environment in which we

         10  now live, we cannot assume that any substance being

         11  brought into the stadium is harmless. So, we will err on

         12  the side of caution, and our employees note they have

         13  the support of management to do that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And when you do

         15  find something like a dagger that might be illegal in

         16  any case the holders carry, you follow that up with an

         17  arrest?

         18                 MR. KASDON: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Or a prosecution?

         20                 MR. KASDON: Yes, sir. There's a police

         21  officer at each gate, and the individual and the object

         22  is brought to the police officer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Just one more

         24  question, Mr. Chair.

         25                 Does this legislation prevent us from
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          2  getting our bobblehead dolls?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Prevent you from

          4  throwing the bobblehead on the field.

          5                 Apparently my mother would never get into

          6  the stadium with her purse either, so... Not that

          7  there's a dagger in it, it's just huge.

          8                 The last of the questions will be from

          9  Council Member Gonzalez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Good morning,

         11  gentlemen.

         12                 I would like to thank you for your

         13  testimony this morning, and I also want to commend you

         14  on the protocol with the team program, the alcohol

         15  enforcement agents, and monitoring in respect to how

         16  many beers someone purchases and all that, and I truly

         17  hope that this continues and the assessment of this

         18  continues. Because when I sat here in thinking as my

         19  colleagues were speaking, you really have no method of

         20  knowing how much someone has drank before they get

         21  there. So, this entire program that you have in place, I

         22  certainly hope there's continuity for the future wherein

         23  that continues to be assessed for the safety of our

         24  public and the people of New York. But I do commend you

         25  on the program. Thank you.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 MR. KASDON: Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Thank you to my

          4  Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          6                 Actually a member of the press thought it

          7  might be a conflict that I didn't say that ADA Kane was

          8  my ex-wife, and I think that might make it harder to get

          9  good testimony, so I'm not sure where the conflict

         10  actually is, but since we did mention that at the last

         11  hearing, I didn't think I needed to mention it this

         12  time, but I wanted to make sure there is no conflict

         13  there.

         14                 We are done with our questioning. I think

         15  we've made it clear that in New York if you're going to

         16  come to a family event then you will have to behave. If

         17  you don't, you run on the field, or you throw something

         18  on the field, we may throw you in jail. And I think

         19  because of the good work of you, gentlemen, and the

         20  Queens DA's Office that has happened. We sent a message

         21  out to all of our fans that they need to behave at these

         22  sporting events because we take this seriously, we take

         23  this potentially dangerous conduct very serious here.

         24                 We will be working on this bill, if the

         25  Council members here have any potential amendments and
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          2  we will be reaching out to everyone here to discuss some

          3  of the changes we will be making regarding intent and

          4  who is covered by this bill. It's too complicated to go

          5  into here but we will be working with you on this. We

          6  will be voting it out of our Committee, since I'm Chair

          7  I can assure you of that, that it will be coming

          8  forward, and we look forward to being kept advised as to

          9  how our laws help you and if there any changes in any

         10  additional area that you might think necessary, feel

         11  free to contact this Committee. We look forward to

         12  working with you.

         13                 So, thank you, all, for taking time in

         14  your schedules to come down today. We look forward to

         15  continuing to work with you.

         16                 This hearing is adjourned.

         17                 MR. MULLIN: Thank you.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 11:25 a.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of New

         11  York, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and

         12  accurate transcript of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not related

         14  to any of the parties to this action by blood or
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         16  outcome of this matter.
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